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To the Members of Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited ("the
Company"}, which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprahensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
("Ind AS™) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the stafe of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, tolal comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companias Act, 2013 ("the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiliies for the Audit of the Financial Statements
saction of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilties in accordance
with these reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

3. Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 42 to the financial statements, in which the Company describes the
continuing uncertainties arising from the COVID 18 pandemic.

Qur apinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

4, Other Matter

The comparative financial statements of the Company as stated in the Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2021, wers audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial statement on May 04, 2021. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion
on the figures reported in the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 Dur opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter. .




5. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audt of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these mattars. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to ba communicated in our report.

Sr. | Key audit matters

Mo

.t

" How our audit addressed the key audit matter |
|

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on Loans and
Advances

As at March 31, 2022, the camrying value of
loan assels measured at amortized cost,
aggregated to Rs. 1029563 Million (net of
allowance of ECL Rs. 257.12 Million).

The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments involves significant judgement
and estmates. As pat of our risk
assessment, we determined that the
allowance for ECL on loan assets has a high
degrea of estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable outcomes for
the financial statements,

The slements of estimating ECL which
imealved increased level of audht focus are
the following:

a) Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires several data inputs.

b} Model estimations -  Inherently
judgmental models are used o estimale
ECL  which involves determining
Probabilities of Default (*PD"), Loss Given
Defaull ("LGD"), and Exposures at Default
("EAD"). The PD and the LGD are the key
drivers of estimation complexity in the ECL
and as a resull are considered the most
significant  judgmental aspect of the
Company's modelling approach.

¢} Qualitative and quantitative factors used
in staging the loan assets measured at
amortized cost.

d) Economic scenarios - Ind AS 108
requires the Company to measure ECLs on
an unbiased forward-looking basis reflecting
a range of future economic conditions.
Significant  management  judgement  is

Our Audit Approach: |

Cur audit approach was a combination of test
of internal controls and substantive procedures
which included the following:

a) Testing the design and effectivensss of
intarnal controls over the following:

* Key controls over the completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs, data and
assumptions into the Ind AS 109
impairment models.

#= Key controls over the apglication of the
staging criteria  consistent with the
dafinitions applied including  the
appropriateness of the gualitative faclors.

¥ Management's controls over authorization |
and calculation of post model adjustments
and managemeant overlays to the output of
the ECL model.

b) On sample basis, ECL allowance on loan
assets were tested over the following:

» Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calculations
fo assess the completensss, accuracy
and relevance of data, reasonableness of
economic forecasts, weights, and model
assumptions applied.

» We evaluated reasonableness of LGD
estimates by comparing actual recoveries
post the loan asset becoming credit
impaired with estimates of LGD; and

¥ We tested the mathematical accuracy and
computation of the allowances by using
the same input data used ~by the
Company. L=
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applied in  determining the economic |

' scenarios used and the probability weights

applied to them. ¢} We also evaluated the adequacy of the
adjustment after stressing the inputs used in
determining the output as per the ECL Model.

Refer Mote 3.7 of the Financial Statemants.

compliance with disclosures to confim the
| compliance with the provisions of relevant
| provisions of Ind AS 109 and the RBI,

|

e) Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Company's Ind AS 109 impairment
methodologies and  reasonablensss  of
assumptions used, including management
overiays,

f) For models which were changed or updated
during the wyear, evaluating whether the
changes were appropriate by assessing the
updated model methodology.

gl Read and assessed the disclosures
included in the Ind AS financial statements in
respact of expected credit losses with the
requirements of Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109.

d) Testing management's conlrals on |

6. Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
ofher information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, Corporate
Governance Report and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, but does not include the
Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are expected to be made
available to us after the date of our auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other Information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required fo communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and delermine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

7. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters staled in Section 134(5) of the
Companiss Act, 2013 {"the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in Equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the }Inmj:q_inling
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principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and complefenass of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Iin preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company's
abilify to continue as a going concern, discloging, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
thie Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but fo do so

The Board of Directors are also responsible for oversesing the company's financial reporting
process.

8. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of intarnal financial controfs retevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinicn on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of managemeant's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to medify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Gnmpany to
cease to continue as a going concern,



« Evaluate the overall presentation; structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatement in the statement that, individuaily or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
statement may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors In; (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effects of any identified misstatements in the financial staterment.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during ocur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

9. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we repor that:
{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Leoss including Other Comprehensive income,
the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

(g} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Saction 164(2) of the Act.



{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we request you to
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B" to this report,

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 187 of the Act.

{h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financlal position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 364 to the financial statements.

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
weare any material foreseeable losses,

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (&} The Management has represented that no funds have besn advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b} The Management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company from any
person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reascnable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under subclause (i} and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement,

v. No dividend was declared and paid by the Company during the year.

For Kolath and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regisfration No: Dﬂ/B,EIZEE

L b
CA Santhi Elizabeth Lij
Partner
Membership Mo: 210878
UDIN: 22210878AINKEMTA91

Kochi
06.05.2022




Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the financial statements of
Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited

Referred to in paragraph [%(i)]] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
saction of our report of even date

According to the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i} (@)

(A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b} The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular programme of verification at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the
periodicity of the physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies ware noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on the information and explanations given to us and on the verification of the relevant
records, the titie deeds for the immovable property are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets during
the year.

{e) According to the information, explanations and representations given to us, no proceedings have
been intiated or is pending against the Company during the year for helding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1888 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i} (a} The Company is primarily engaged in lending business. Accordingly. it does not hold any
inventories. Thus paragraph 3(ii){a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Based on
the information, explanation and representation provided by the Company and our audit procedures
undertaken, we have not come across any difference between the information submitted in the
guarterly returns / statements filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions when
compared with the books of account and other relevant infarmation provided by the Company.

(iif) (a) The Company is primarily engaged in lending activities and hence reporting under paragraph
3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company

{by Considering that the Company i a Non - Banking Finance Company, the investments made,
security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of
laans are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further, according to the infarmation
and explanations provided to us, the Company has not provided any guarantees during th@'}mm

o

(c) In respect of the loans given and advances in the nature of loans, the Company
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest. However, given



business of the Company being a Non — Banking Finance Company, there are certain cases during
the year and az at March 31, 2022 wherein the amounts wera overdue vis-a-vis stipulated terms.

d) In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company, there
is no overdua amount for more than ninety days as at the Balance Sheet date except for the
following cases as on March 31, 2022;

(Rs. In Million)

Mumber of Cases Total Amount Dues
520 308,20

Further, on the basis of discussions with the management and representations given to us, we
understand that reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal
and interest.

(e} The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities and hence reporting under paragraph
3(iiiy(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f} Based on the information and explanations provided to us, we did not come across loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or

pericd of repayment. Thus, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(v} To the best our knowledge and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the

Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and security under
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

(V) Actording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposit as at March 31, 2022 and
therafore, the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder are not applicable to the Company. We are informed by the
management that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board, National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal against the Company in this
regard.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Thus, reparting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ivii) In respect of statutory dues :

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dugs on account of sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
axcise and value added tax. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of maore than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b} The details of statutory dues referred to in sub- paragraph (&) above which have not been
deposited as on 31 March 2022, on account of disputes are given balow:
| Nameofthe | Natureofdues | Amount(Rs.In | Periodtowhich |  Forumwhere . |

Y



Statute Million) the amoLnt dispute is pending

| ) relates
The Income Income Tax 283.90 Assessment year | Commissioner of

Tax Act 1961 2018-18 Income Tax
| (Appeals), Kochi

(viil} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no fransactions which
have not been recorded in the books of account but have been surrendered or disclosed az income
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981 during the year,

{ix} a} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,

b) Based on the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

&) According to the information, explanations and representation given to us and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied by the
Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained, other than tempaorary
deployment pending application of proceeds.

d} Gn an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis do not seem to have been used during the year for long-term purposes.

&) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(e} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3{ix){f} of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(%) &) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (x){a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence reporting
under paragraph 3 (x){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xi) a) Based upon the information, explanation and representations and on audit procedures
parformed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements, no fraud on
or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us and fo the best of our knowledge, no
report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has heen filed in Form ADT- 4 as prascribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and up to the date of this report.

c) According to the information, explanations and representations given to us by the management,
there were no whistie blower complaints received by the Company during the year and hence
reporting under paragraph 3 (xi}{¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{#il) The Company is not a nidhi company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 {xn]l of the Order
iz not applicable to the Company.




{xiil) Acsording to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 128 of the Act where applicable, for all the
transactions with related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements etc, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) {a} In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

b) We have laken into consideration, the intemnal audit reports for the period under audit issued to
the Company while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

{xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to
in Section 182 of the Act. Thus, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India (REI) Act, 1934,

b} The Company has conducted Housing Finance activities holding a valid Cerificate of
Registration (CoR) from Mational Housing Bank under Section 29A of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987,

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by

the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group.

(xvii} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year
coverad by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been a resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year by virtue of RBI
Circular no. RBI2021-22/25 Ref. No. DoS. CO. ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27,
2021, relating to Guidelines for appointment of Statutory Auditors and no issue, objection or
concern was raised by the outgoing auditor.

(xix) According to the information, explanations and representations given o us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial aszets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowladge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is baszed on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
faling due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

{xx) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no unspent amount pursuant to other than ongoing projects
which Is required 1o be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013,

i.
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within & period of six months of the expiry of the Financial year in compliance with second proviso to
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on ocur examination of the
records of the Company, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any ongoing project which is required to be transferrad to special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (8) of Section 135 of the Act.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures of the Company and
hence the paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Kalath and Co

Chariered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 0089265
CA Santhi Elizabeth Liju) ( 27 _--xl.-:,ﬂ‘».ﬁ

Partner ﬁ: h( i

Membership No: 210978 || ! S
UDIN: 2221097 B8AINKEMT991% ﬂ‘/

Kochi
06.05.2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the financial statements of
Muthoot Homefin (India} Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 9 (2) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements section of our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

1, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the
Financial Statements of Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited ("the Company™), as of 31 March

2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemnal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIN. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial confrols over
financial reperting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ({the "Guidance Note") and
tha Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed fo be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicabie to an audit of Internal Financial Gontrols and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporiing was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system owver financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contrel based
an the assesszed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or eror.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial conirols system over financial
reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

B,

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporing includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expendifures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company: and {3) provide reasonable
agsurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acguisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material affect on the financial staterments.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

1.

Because of the inherent imitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemnal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kolath and Co
Chartered Accountanis

Firm's Registration No: ﬂDfE-EI

asc Aot
CA Santhi Elizabeth Lijg,
Partner

Membership No: 210978
UDIN: 22210978AINKEMTO991

Kochi
06.05.2022
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TO
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MUTHOOT HOMEFIN {INDIA) LIMITED

As required by the Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Direclions, 2021, we state that:

(I} The company has abtained a certificate of registration under section 284 of The Mational Housing
Bank Act, 1987, dated 16th May 2014 from Mational Haousing Bank; and the company has complied
with the Principal Business Criteria specified in Paragraph 4.1.17 of the Mon- Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve bank) Directions, 2021;

(i) The campany has met the Net Owned Fund (NOF) requirement as prescribed under Section 204
of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

{iify The campany has complied with saction 298G of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987;

() According to the information and explanations given to us, the Board of Directors has passed a
resolution for non- scceptance of any public deposits:

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any
public deposits during the year;

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the total borrowings of the company
are within the limits prescribed under paragraph 27.2 of the Non-Banking Financial Company -
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

{vil) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
prudential norms on income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification, loan to value
ratio, provisioning requirements, disclosure in balence sheet, investment in real estate, exposure to
capial market and engagement of brokers, and concentration of creditinvestments as spacified in the
Mon- Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directiong, 2021:

{vili} According to the information and explanations given to us, the capital adequacy ratio as
disclosed in the half-yearly statutory return submitted to NHB, as per the Housing Finance Companias
(NHB) Directions, 2010, has been comectly determined by the company and such ratle s in
compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) therein;

{ix} The Company has fumished the half- yearly statutory return to NHB within the stipulated period as
specified in the Housing Finance Companies (NHE) Directions, 2010

R

o




(x} The company has furnished the quarterly statutory return on Statutory Liquid Assets to
the NHE within the stipulated period as specified in the Housing Finance Companies (NHE)
Directions, 2010;

{x1) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied
with the reguirements contained in the NOn-Banking Financial Company — Houging Finance
Company (Reserva Bank) Directions, 2021 in respect of opening of new branches/offices or
in the case of closure of exisling branchesfoffices, as applicable;

{xii) According to the information and explanations give to us, the company has complied
with the provisions contained in paragraph 3.1.3, paragraph 3.1.4 and paragraph 18 of the
Nen- Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021,

For Kolath and Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 008582
Sava ey (2

CA Sarithl Elizabeth Lijd,_N 7o A4

Partner NS Aot

Membership No: 210978
UDIN: 22210978AINKEMT291

Kaochi
06.05.2022



Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

Registered Office: Muthoot Chambers, Kurian Towers, Banerji Road, Ernakulam MNorth, Kochi - 682 018

CIMN: U582 3KI2011PLEDZS231

[R5 in Millians)
Particubars Notes St haat
Miarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I ASSETS

1 Financial assets
a) Cazh and cash equivalents 5.1 Ao Bh Lg2.22
bl Benk Balance other than cashoand cash equivalents 5.2 25277 131.25
o] Loans G 10,295.63 13,767,149
d) Investments ¥ 1,132.36 L R
e} Qther financial assets B B8 1.645.62
1 Mon-financial assets
2| fraperty, plant and equipment g 29.90 54,76
By Carrtal work-in-progriess 10 aEsT
o} Other intangible assets 11 2.96 4,04
ap Current tax assels {net) JE.AE G067
et Gther non fimancist aseets 12 1.0 1328

Total asseky 12,825,497 16,763.94

ITEEBALITIES &ND EGLITY

1 Finangial liabilithes
al (1] Trade pavabie

[iltotal oulstanding dues of micro enterpeises and

cotlll enkerprioes

(il takal outstanding dues of ceeditors other than 13 3306 3312

rdCro enberprises and smisll enterprises
tr) Dbt securitiec 14 242069 3,087 Bd
c} Borrowings {atheér than debt securities) 15 BadLET BGa3es
di Ochier fivancial liabilities 1& 454,20 Ad1.57
2 Nenfinancial Liabibides
a) Provisions 17 756 359
b Ceferred taw Uishilltiesinet) 31 165.55 1a1.44
| Owher non-financiad lkabdlities 1% 730 5.56
3 Equlty
al Equity share capical 19 119156 1.191.56
) Oher equity 20 3.275320 319509

Total liabilities and equity 12,825.97 16,781.94

Meteson aocounts form: part of financial staterments

As per our Repart of even date

For Kolath & Co
Charterad Accountants
FRMN; 0089265

1]
& L]
=AvAL

Santhi Elizabeth Liju
Partoer
M. No, 210978
Ceate: - Pay OE,
Mace: Koché
L0 - 2221087

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited

Db QOOLETRT

Qhcodtornt
Pandurang Kadiam
Chief Firancial Cfficer

Ezpeh Alexanddr
Whide-time Director
iN: 2601

nu Mathen
Losmprarny hecratany




Muthoot Homefin {(india) Umited
Stagemspnt of prodis and loas for the year onded March 31, 2022
Registared Office: Mutheot Chambers, Kurlan Towers, Banerji Raad, Ernakulam Narth, Kachd - A2 018
Ciki; UGS922HE201 1PLOO2523]

1R & Milfons)

Porticitiars — Foar endad Yeear ended
Blarch 30, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Revenue from operatinns
il Inserast insame 32 163812 14557
il Sale of service 1239 4.5
fiilh  Hetguin on derecopnied Jassigned) ioans 38503 243.06
tiy} Mt gzingiioss) on fair value chanpges 13 £33 .54
{1} Tetal Rewenue fram operations 11645 240317
i rthar Incame i 040 4335
L Total Incame {1+ 1) 2,315.85 2,845,402
Eupanses
[ Fanares cost 5 807 88 133861
(] St lass oo derecognised (assignad] pans 3518 12,48
Giii} imgairenenl of fingacial instruments and write OF 5 F03.75 50714
(Wl Emmboyas harafii espenses a7 2a3.51 EL N
(¥] Deprecetan, amorbization ang Engalrmas i 1651, 3787
] Qhar pxpensas 24 128.94 147155
() Totsl Expenses (IV) 203558 2,277.75
Wi Profit befare exceptional items amd tax {1 - W) 100.97 1BE.E6
W Exceptional ems
1w} Profit hebare tax [v- Vi) 100,57 168,66
IVl Tax Expense:
(1) Current 1ax 30 - 13.10
(2) Deferred tax 31 24,08 30006
(31 Earlied waars adjustments 17,13 2
plet Tax Expense (V] 1693 #3.16
[{E s Frofit for the periond VIV Ha.04 12550
L4 Orheer Cornprehenshoe ncome
[} s £hal will not e chassified o profit or Soss
ia} Rnmeasatements ol the defned benefit plang 018 139
(il tncome tas redating po tems that will sat be 045 (0ES)
reclassified ba prafit or ks
Orher Compréhenshve incomae (i + 1] 0,13 Ed
[Le]] Tatal Comprehensive iIncome for the period (B + ) BT 176,54
{®i) Earnings per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10/ Each) 31
Basi (R ¥l L5
Cribytid |85 o7 105

Noses on acoaunts farm Fart ol financial ststements
As por cur Report of gven date

Foor Kolath & Co
Chamersd Acoountants
FREM: DORGERES

g0 \_fj I
By AL
Santhd Elizabeth Liji
Faringr
M. No. 210875 o
Cater MMy 0D, 20022 ,.-"':""“..'- o
o Kach -
DR s 2221097

For and on behalf of Beard af Diceclors of Muthpor Homefin {Indial Limited

b MLl

Whinda-time [irecLar

picadem

Pandurang Kadam
Chict Finangial Officer




Pauthoot Hometin (indiz} Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
Registered Office: Muthoot Chambsers, Bieden Towers, Banei Raad, Ernakulam North, Kochl - 5832 018
CIMg: EpeRSFARLI IPLO0023]

1Rs in Mw_n:ﬂ

Particulars Far the yegr -Enr;Ed Fﬂthghmrm

March 31, 2002 |  March 31, 202
. Cash flow from Operating A thities
Prafit before tak 1EH}.57 163 66
Adjustents far:
Depredialion, amorbisatan & ingairmen 16.51 2702
Irnpasrent an finandal indbruiments sod write OF TS 507,14
Interest Expenses o 122462
el gan on derecogneed [assiEned] loans 35382 [237.77)
158t gain an fair value changes (653} 19.94)
Loss on saip of Progerty. plant and equlpement A7 1.45
Operating Profit Befare Waorking Capital Changes 127483 168248
Waorking capital changes
Tracks repeatilas
Rank balance ather than cash and ash equivalenss (LEL R {131.25)
Larand 2harm 2,983,380
Danar [ancial assed 100187 (1,003,065}
Cihgr non fnancial assel 1788 f.&4
siher financial liab@sies and other nan fnandial llabilites 4717 76,11
Trade payables 10061 .04
Froreisann 4.1% 432
Cash Generatad from Operations &, 857.07 3,571,586
Inkerest Paid (795,90) (1,245 54}
Incorne Reteed oo Assignement of Loans 11835 91,30
Incorme tax pald 136.85) 374
et eash faws fromfused in) operating aotivities £,7292.67 252109
B.Cash o fram Investing Activities
Prchase of Progerty, plant and eqoipatenddintargly gz {T4.66] {508 |
Sate af Propecty, plant ard eaipment (LEG 09,18
Purchase of investrients |&050.460 113, 370,80}
Preceads from Sabe af noestmernits 543583 13 0064 .04
furchase of Semurity Recaipt -
Aedpmiption of Secuily Receiat A5 13,51
Het cash flows fromf{used in) investing activities [6ra02)) (2e7.25)
C.Cash flow fram Financing activitiss
Procegos ram isies af shares .
Boerowings other than dedt securities issoed (3455146 {2583 )
Skt Securlties lssued |67 .15) 250,00
8ot pash flows fromyused In) financing sctivities 13129310 12.333.68)
Mef incregiefdedrease) in cash and cash equivalemts 15015.56) 1105, 6d)
Add: Cash and cash equivalenis 5 a1 beginning of the year 55212 GELAE
Cash and cash equivalents as st the end of the year AG.GE 552.22
Components of cash & cash eguivadents
Cask an hand 371 SHE
ITL LT TENE ACCOURS 4245 Ba6.37
I Bank depasit with maturicy of s shan 1 monthy - -
Tatal 4666 552.22
Motesan acceunts larm part of finsncial stazements
A per aur Repart of ouan date
Four Kodath & Ca Far and on behai of Bisrd of Dirsctars of Muthoot Homefin {india) Umited
Chartered Aceayntants
FRMN: DO85265

¥
1
‘g_\ nn, A i

Sanithi Elizabath Liju Eapen Alewander—""
Fartrer Whanlefirne Directoe
Kl e, TLOGTR &

Drates Doty D, 2022
Fiace: Kachi
LADIN - 223105 T8AIN

i - F
!r.f :

L fi'_l'

Chisf Financhal Officer
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Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Motes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022

Registered Dffice: Muthoot Chambers, Kurian Towers, Banerji Road, Ernakulam MNorth, Kochi - 682 018
CIM; UESS22KL2011PLE0 231

L. Corporate Information

Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited was incorporated on 26 August 2011 The Corporate Identification
Number {CIN} is UB5922KL2011PLC029221. The Company obtained the certificate of registration under
the National Housing Bank (“NHB") as required inder Section 294 of the NHE Act, 1987 on 19th Pay,
2014. The Company fulfils the Principal Business Criteria as laid down under paragraph.4.1.17, of the
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Beserve Bank) Directions,
2021 ["Master Directions'). The Company's financial assets constitute more than 60% of its tatal assets
and cut of the tolal assets, the Company has financed over 50% towards housing foans to individuals

The Company iz a wholly owned subsidiary of Muthoot Finance Limited.

The repistered office of the Company is at Muthoot Chambers, Kurian Towers, Banerji Road, Ernakulam
MNarth, Kochi — 687 018

The Company is prirnarily engaged in the business of providing long term finance to construct, purchase,
acquire, renovate, modify, extend, enlarge or repaic any house, villa, flat, apartment on the terms and
conditions as the company may deem fit.

2. Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Acoounting
standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (a5 amended
fram time to bime),

T2 Basis of measurement

The Financial staterments have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for following assets and
fahilitles which have been measured at fair value:

] fair value through other comprehensive income [FYOCT) instruments,

il derivative financial instruments,

i} other financial assets held for trading,

b financial assets and liabifities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Repees {INR] which is also its functional currency and all
values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1.  Recognition of interest income
1. The Company recognises Interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets and
ather credit-impaired financlal assets, '
£.. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financal assets, the Company applies the credit-
adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initlal recognition,




Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited

Motes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022

Registerad Office: Muthoot Chambers, Kurian Towers, Banerji Road, Ernakulam North, Kochi - 682 018
CiIN: UeS922KLA011PLO0ZE231

3. For other credit-impaired financial assets, the Company applies effective interest rate to the
armortized cost of the financial asset In subsequent reporting periods.

4. The effective interest rate on-a financial asset is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected Ife of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of 3 financial
asset While estimating future cash receipts, factors like expected behaviour and life tycle of the
financial asset, probable fluctuation’in collateral value etc are considered which has an impact on
tine EIR,

5. While caboulating the effective interest rate, the Company includes all fées or received to and from
the borrowers that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums ot discounts,

6. Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is
recognised using the contractual interest rate as net gain on fair value changes.

32 Recopnition of Dividend Income

Dividend income {including from FYQCT investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to receive
the payment is established. This is established when it is probable that the ecenomic benefits associated
with the dividend will fiow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliatbly.

33 Other Income and Charpges

Dther income and charges represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and f&
recognised upon realisation.

34 Financial instruments
A Financial Assets
34.1  Initlal recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value when the parties become party to the contractual
pravisions of the financial asset, In case of financial azsets which are nol recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of issue of the financial
asiets, are adjusted to the fair value an initial recognition.

3.4.2 Subseguent measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets into various measurement categories, The classification
depenids on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company's business moded
for managing financial assets;

1. Finoncial assets measured ot amortisen cost
A financial asset is measured at Amortised Cast if it s held within a business model whase
objective is to hold the aszet in erder ta colleck contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the Financial Asset glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial ossels meosured of foir vaive through other comprehensive income [FUTOCH




Muthgot Homefin (India) Limited

Motes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022

Registered Office: Muthoot Chambers, Kurlan Towers, Banerji Road, Ernakulam North, Kochl - 682 018
CIM: UBS922ELZ011PLCD2S231

A financial asset is measured al FVTOO! I it is held within a business model whose ohiective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and contractual
terms of finangial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

3. Firancial ossets measured of folr value thraugh prafit or loss (FYTPL)
A fimancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTP.

34.3  Other Equity Investmients

Al other equity investments are measured at falr value, with value changes recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the
changes in falr valee through other comprehensivie income (FYTOC)

B. Financial Liabilities

344  Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. The company's Tinancial liabilities include trade and other
pavables, loans and borrowings including book overdrafts,

345 Subsequent Measurement

Financial Habilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.5 Deracognition of financial assets and Habilities
3.5.1 Financial Asset

A financial asset {or, whiere applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) Is de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company alsa de-recognised the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transter
gualifies for derecognition. A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

= The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assst or

s The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transterred control of the asset

3.5.2 Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing fimancial kability is repiaced by another fram the same l2nder on substantialby
different terms; or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
madification is treated as de recognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liahility. The
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid s
fecognised in profit o boss,
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3.6  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabifities are generally reparted gross in the balance sheet, Financisl assets
and [abifities are offset and the net amount i presented in the balance sheet when the Company hasa
logal right to offset the amouwms and intends to settle on 2 net basis or to redlise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously in all the follewing clrcumstances:

2. The nommal course of business
b, The event.of defaolt
¢ The eventof insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

3.7 impairment of financial assets

in-gccardance with INDG A5 109 | the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss' model {ECL) , for evaluating
Impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss.

3.7.1  Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measared through a koss allowance for a financial asset:

At an amaunt egual to the ifetime evpected credit losses if the cradit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantty since initial recognition,

- At an amaunt egual to 12-manth expected credit losses, if the credit risk on 2 financial
instrument has nat increased significantly since initisl recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected lite of a financial asset,

12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result
from default events on financial 3scets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting data.

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets
credit risk has-increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the change
in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into three stages as described below:

For non-emipaired financial assets

= Stage lis comprised of all non-impatred financial assets which have not experienced a significant
increase in credit risk [SICR} since initial recognition. A& 12-manth ECL provision is made for stage
1 financial assets, In assessing whether credit risk has increased significanthy, The Company
compares the risk of a default accurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date with the
risk of 2 default occurring on the financial asset as at the date ofinitial recognition,

= Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant
tncrease in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company recognises lifetime ECL for stage 2
financizl assets. In subsequent réporting periods; if the credit risk of the finandal instrument
-j'ziﬁf:rms such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
+
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then entities shall revert to recognizing 12 months ECL provision,

For impaired financial assets:

Financial assets are classified as stage 3 when there is chiective evidence of impairment a5 a result of ane
or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated

future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Company recognises Hfetime ECL for impaired
financial assets,

3.7.2  Estimation of Expected Credit Loss
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD] - The Probability of Default i= an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time harizon.

The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different
products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolic inte various pools. For certain piocs
where historical infermation is available, the PD is calculated considering fresh slippage of past years. For
those pools where historical information iz not avallable, the PD/ default rates as stated by exterpal
reporting agencies is considered.

Exposure at Default - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,
considering expected changes in the expasure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal
and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilitios,
and accrued interest from missed payments,

Loss Given Default — The Logs Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default
orcurs at @ gheen time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows dise and those
that the lender would expect to receive, Including from the realisation of any collateral,

Forward locking information

While estimating the expected tredit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
accuring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is
any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by
the Reserve Bank of India, inflation ete. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based
an its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be ahways
reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodalogy to reflect
such macro-economic trends reasonably.

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible, The
collateral generally in the form of mortgages of Properties Howsver, the fair value of collsteral affects the
caloulation of ECLs. The collateral is majorly the property for which the loan is given, The fair value of the
saime is based on data provided by third party or management judgements.

Collateral repossessed - In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, the Company may take
possession of properties or other assets o its retail portfolio and generally disposes such assets through
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the custorers/obligors. As a result
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of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet,
Coflateral repossessed is valiued at zero in the statement of financial statemonts,

Write-offs - Loans are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case
when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Amy su bseguent recoveries
against such lpans are credited to the statement of profit and loss

3.8 Determination af fair value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments at falr value at each balance sheet
date

Fair value |5 the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
Iransaction between markel participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement s based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i Iethe principal market for the asset or liakility, or
Ik, v the absence of a principal market, inthe most advantageous market for the asset or liabifity

The principal er the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lishility is measured wsing the assumptions that market parthcipants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, asseming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 3 market participant’s ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset In its highest and Dest use

The Company uses valuation technigques that are appropriate in the circurmstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use ot unchservable inputs,

The financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technlgques, as summarised
hieloa

Level Lfinancial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices
frem active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Comgpany has access to at the measurement
date, The Company considers markets as active onby if there are sufficient trading activities with regards
tothe velume and liguidity of the identical assets or liabilitles and when there are binding and exercisable
price quates avaiable on the balance sheet date,

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are
derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire perlod of the
instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabiities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as Inlerest rates and vield curves, implied volatifities, and. credit spreads, In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to
items that are comparable to the valued instrument, However, if such adjustments are hased on

=

ey
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unabservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Compamy will classify the
instruments as Level 3,

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is siznificant to
the measurement as whals,

3.9 Cash.and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subjact to an inslgnificant risk of changes in value,

Far the purpose of the staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks and
anhand and short- term deposits, as defined above,

3.10  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE] are meassred at cost less sccumulsted depreciation and
accumnulated impairment, if any. Cost of an tem of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including impert duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade dizcounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and remaving the em and restoring the site on which it i lecated.

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for its intended use at sach reporting date are
disclosed as capital work-in-progress,

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount of recosnised as a separate
asset only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, bevand its previously assessed standards
of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed
aff asand when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when ao future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (caloulated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) s recognised in other income /
expense in the staterment of profit and loss o the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of
an item of property, plant and eguipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in
accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind a5
115,

3.10.1 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using written down value [WDV) method to write down the cost of praperty
and equipment to their resideal values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimatad
useful life-as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Leasehold Improvements are amortised in 10 vears unless it has a shorter life.
The estimated useful lives ara as follows:

Particulars Useful fife

Furniture and fixture B 10 years = |

Office egquipment : 5 years |
=

-y
A !-"\';‘;f'l




Mutheot Hemefin (India) Limited

Motes an atcounts for the year ended March 31, 2022

Registered Office: Muthoot Chambers, Kurian Towers, Banerji Road, Ernakulam North, Kochi - 682 018
CIN: Ue5922KL2011P1LC029231 .

‘i-e-r‘mEr and networking 2 | Byears |

| Computer 3 years

(Bodg Nyears |

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciatioh of property, plant and eguipment ars
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, f appropriate.

3.11  Intangible assets
The Company's intangible assets consist of computer software and website development,

An Inangible asset s recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost The cost of an intangible
assel comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready
for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost bess any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intanglble assets comprising of software and website develapment are amortised on a WDV basis over a
period of 5years, unless it has a shorter useful ife,

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Lass
when the asset is derecognised.

312 Impairment of non—financial assets: Property , Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Company’s assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that any Property, Plant
and Equipment and intangible Assets or group of assets called Cash Generating Units (CGU} may he
impaired. I any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Comrany estimates the asset’s recoverable amount to determine the extent of impairment, i amy.

Am asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-genarating unit’s {CEUY fair value bass
costs of disposal and its value in use. Becoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, When the carrving amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asuet
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

I assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks
speecific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
inta-account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used, These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples. quoted share prices for publichy traded companies
or ather avaiiable fair value indicatars.

Anassessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previaushy
recognised impalmment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previcusly recognised impairment loss is reversed
anly if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount
since tie last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amaount of the
s net exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
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determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at & revalued
amaunt, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

3.13  Employee Benefits Expenses

3.13.1 Short Term Employes Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term emplover benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the

services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees
render the senvices

3.13.2 Post-Employment Benefits
A Defined contribution schemes

All eligible employees of the company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
tontribution plan in which both the employvee and the company contribute monthly at a stipulated
percentage of the covered emplovee’s salary, Contributions are made to Employees Provident Fund
Crganization In respect of Provident Fund, Pension Fund and Employees Deposit Linked insurance S¢hemea
at the prescribed rates and are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss at actuals. The company has no
liability for future provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

B. Deflned Benefit schames
Grrakulty

The Company provides for gratuity covering eligible emplovess under which a lump sum payment is paid
to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
reckoned on the respective employee's salary and his tenor of employment with the Company, The
Company accounts for its liability for future gratuity benefits based on actuarial valuation determined at
each Balance Sheet date by an Independent Actuary using Projected Unit Credit Methad,

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated Future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the compléxities Involved in the valuation and its lang-term nature, these liabilities are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reparting date,

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability], are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with 3 correspanding
debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they
occur, Be-measurements are not redlassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods
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3.13.3 Other Long term employes benefits
Accumulated compensated absences

The Company provides for liability of accumulated compensated absences for eligible emplayess on the
basis of an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year, using the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
inwhich they oodur,

3.13.4 Provisions {other than employee benefits)

Frovisions are recognised when the emnterprize has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result
of past events, and It i probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be
required to tetthe the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash fows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the lability,
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
relmbursement,

1.14 Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sumof current tax and deferred tax
3.14.1 Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of Income taxes payable In respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit
differs from "profit before tax' as reported In the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and Items that are never taxable or deductible in
accordance with applicable tax laws.

The tas rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the end of reporting date in Indla where the Company operates and generates taxable
NCome.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
he., either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation 1o
the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Managerment
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

3.14.2 Deferved tax

Dreferred tax is provided on temparary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities used in the computation of taxable profit and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements for financtal reporting purposes,

Deferred Lax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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L Where the deferred tax liabifity arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
Hability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

. Inrespect of taxable temparary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controtled and it is probabie that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeahie future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carny forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temparary differences, and the carey
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

L When the deferred tax asset refating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the Initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that i= not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

i In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries,
associates and Interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse inthe foreseeabie future and taxable
prafit will be available agalnst which the temparary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that It i no longer probable that sufficient taxable prafit will be available to allow all gr part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date

and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recavered,

Deferred tax assets and lkabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear

when the asset 5 realised or the liability i settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lass Is recognised ‘outside profit or loss e,
gither in ather comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation 1o
the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes refate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation awtharity.

315 Contingent Liabilities and assets

A centingent liability is a poessible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
canfirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events bevond the
cantrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recopnized because it cannat be measured reliably,
The Company does not recognize a contingent lability but discloses its existence In the financial
statements.
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A contingent assel is 3 possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whiolly withif the
control of the entity. The company does not have ary cantingent assets in the financial statements

3.16 Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind A5 33 on Earnings per
share. Basic EPS Is calculated by dividing the net profit ar loss for the vear attributable to Uity
sharehabders {after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the welghted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the vear,

For calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares gutstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equily shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed convertad
as of the beginning of the pericd, unkess they have been issued at a later date. Incom puting the dilutive
earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per
share or increases loss per share are Included,

317 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or containg # lease_ is based an the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement &
dependent on the use of 2 specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.

Leases that do not transfer 1o the Company substantially all the risks and bensfits incidental to ownarsh im
of the leased tems are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss on a straight-ling basis over the Jease term, unless the increase i< in line with
expected general intlation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual terms.

4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS reguires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of FEVRNLES, EXpenses, assets
and fabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosere of contingent liakilities, at the end of
the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisians
to accounting estimates are recognised in the pericd in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects cnly that period or in the peniod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods, Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current evenls dand actions, uncertainty about these’ assumptions and estimates could resiult in the
outcames requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, informaticn about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
appiying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is incheded in the following notes:
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4.1 Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the sole payments of
principal and interest (‘the SPPI criterlon’) and the business model test. The Company determines the
business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessment Includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets
are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value
thraegh other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for
which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Compamy's continuous assesament of whether the
business medel for which the remaining financial assets are held continues o be appropriate and if it is
not appropriate whether there has been a change In business model and 50 a prospective change to the
clazsification of those assets,

Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Company, the management has measured its
financial assets at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business maodel whose objective is to callect
contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are
safely payments of principal and interest {‘the ‘SPPI criterion’].”

4.2  Effective interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given and recognises
the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product
flife cycle {including prepayments and penalty interest and charges),

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
cycle of the instruments, probable fluctuations in collateral vahse as well as expected changes to India's
base rate and other fer income/expense that are Integral parts of the instrument.

4.3  Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash fows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a sipnificant increase in credit risk. These estimatas
are driven by a number of factors, changes.in which can result in different levels of allowances,

it has been the Company's policy to regularly review its modets in the context of actual koss experience
and adjust when necessany.
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4.4  Defined employee benefit assets and labilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obiigation are
determined using actuarial valyations, An actuarial valuation Involves making various assum phloms that
iy differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexitios involved in the valuation and its long-
term nmature, a defined benefit cbligation is heghly seasitive to changes in these assumptions. All
azsumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

4.5 Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial Habilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
technigues. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasibie, a degree of judgment & required In establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputt such as liquidity risk, credit risk and walatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instraments,

4.6 Other estimates

These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets ete.
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Tluthoos Homafn {India) Limited
Hedes to the Hnanclal statemsnts for the year ended Marck 31, 2023

B.10 Crefit Caaality. of Loan Ascnts iR in Mk
The fabln bekoe shows U sradk quality 2nd th maksmanm esposiae o creda sk ased oo the Comgany's serns ¢ bt rating syskem and yedr-end s2aga dassilicaln
The amoands ideieeled are gross of iImpalrmes alowdsces, Details of the Lompany s internal gradiog system see ssplainad in Mothe 40,

; Az at March 31, 203T &5 ot March 31, 2031
Farticalade Stage 1 Slage T Sape 1 Tasal Seaps 1 Sage 2 Stage 3 Tatad
Lolactive | Collictive Lollgsiee | Collectan
IntEmpd rateg prade
Performing
High giads S - - % 40295 15,5846 - - 1158857
LEprid e grade L1891 - 518,91 T34 55 T4 RS
St ranaid gy e - 454 38 - a6, 31 EiSE - BT4EZ
Ber-due Bul not Ennsred - L& Wk R o i - 42843 AFEAT
M- gefarming
ind b uaiy ngiined : 30521 0821 . 2 R, B 24
 Tatal ES1EE 1.365.98 30921 | MOS86.55] 1231046 100145 B0 | 1410307 |
ind A5 &djustmens 145,80 [T5.
e Sarrying Amoue 10.552.75 “m.ﬂi].—%‘
Ar analysts of thanges in the gross arrging amowst and the Sarnmgonding B0L alowanoes, as Teffows:
25 ot March 31,2023 A at Misech 31, 3031
Paniodars Elage 1 Sxape 2 Staged Talad Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Testal
. Collective Cotiective | Cofactive
GEeat CETYIEE amaunt - spening bafance 1331528 1,102 35 ERM.AL RN L, 210051 100702 3ATGY 17 555 Bl
aal pidetyoniginated o purthaged et b iniresse 143547 118K 1,468 7S 13305 LR 1,274
rpaskimg arspts
fuyats darecopnisad or rapad {aarlucing wr e s (4 144:23) 185 53} |38 .09 (1 Merar | [T R 1% 55 {751 8L
Tegnsfers o Stage L ITi34 23T 133,82 Eradl [N ] [HRY
Transfars m Srags 7 [EalEt it TEL.TI 185 66| D e e V] TT5.0% 1436,
Trajnsleny o Sage 3 |45 56} | E95 82 AT AT (34338 445,55 Fat s
Amoeras writan alf - 53510 (R ST) [ =] [437.96; [455.55)
amoant - ki B.921.86 136545 L0401 1659655 4204903 14364 SUmGd | B4,103.07
b BS i i
Groas Carrying Amoung 10,352.75 T
Eecopciation af ECL kalance |s garen below:
A5 21 March 34, 2037 A5 3t Warch 31, F0rl
Particulars Shage 1 Srpge 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Sage I Cape 3 Tokal
Collestee | (ollsctive Coflecthor | Coflective
ECL allowanco - apening halence B A 1823 0700 AEDGT B354 53 1105 17957
]F.I:L Barmeasuremenis dud to ceanges b Ead | OB} | (E000 f30 #0333 253 - |45 6}
Assumpkions
Traeiers o Saga- | iR 124.45| (253 {3705 i85 [0 (4 |2.a5} |30.585
Trarahars b Soage 2 !:I.:_!I TG £551] .14 15243 RaA2 | 537} B1L1T7
Tranadirs £0 SCagm 3 [lESL] P ]| E2 ] F Rl [ [ LR 2238% 17132
JAMGUnE wr dpen off - LR [ ]_y_l [[aRE ] JELEFD 152323} L2451
LECL allowane - elaging hlsnge 3637 4330 m.éiji 15743 3T.46 1Y ] )




Muthoat Homedin {ndka| Lnited

Netes b the financial staterments for the year ended March 31, 2023

[R5 in Bdillion|

6.10 A compariscn beteeen orovisions required undier Incame recagnition, asset chassification and provisiaaing (IRACP] ard
wngAirment aflowances as per ind A% 109 Flranclal instedie s’

o e Losx allowances P Cif e
At Classifcation os per BB “f el |Provisionsias | Mt earrying OO A5 | et Ir'rd A5
V elassficktion as | amount as per : pesr IRACPE 109 pravisians
e parind AS 109, |  ndag | F9umedumder]  amaunk vtk and IRACP
End % 100
TS
11 ] LER 4 15)= {38} el {7 = 4116
Parbormning Astens
Lrardard Stage [ 2.571 86 a6.37 5,265,495 2400 1230
Sage 1 136548 4313 32235 4100 213
Subtotal 10,287.34 9,50 10.H0T 54 507 443
Hen-Parfarming Assets (NRA|
Substandard SEE 3 PSR | R e _LE'-'.E-I:I 4559 L254R
Dot - up o ] yeas Sifage 3 .30 54 393 2 260 |
Salstatal ALEL 17762 131,59 A%.540 125,08
Taoral | Stage 1 2521 RE 637 EEB5.49 ELE 1230 |
Stage 2 LG5 4R 13.13 13383E 41,00 k13
Sage 3 :ﬂ:ﬂ.li 13767 131,59 45, 54 11208
T{I!El .1.!'.!1.5:5&55 I57.1% 10,339,493 11361 14351
frid &5 ddstmort [45.800] 4380 A
Tatal 10,552.75 | 157.12 10,255.63 11361 14351 |




Muthaod Hemefin {Indla] Linvited

Botes to the linarcisl statements for the year ended March 31, 3057

Begbe T; invest ments 1Az in Midlion)
Famticulan Az 81 March 33; 2032 fix af March 31, 2031
fmprtised A Tak vahie Lpnortscd A Fair walun
oakl Through Other | Through | Desipnated ot L] Thrcugh Other | Thivsagh [esignated
Cosmprahaative | profif erloss | fair value Comprehersive | profit orloss | at fair valus
EnCoeme throgph praft o through
o7 loss profit or loss
SEourity Reooins - - TRE.2E ADE R
flidugl Funds 1 - GRG0 I
Teral Grods {A) : - 1,150.16 : - §24.51 :
| CRSTRRAE VR S
U} irupstments in bngdls 13151k 53433
Total Gross {B] . - L1916 E Fda. 31 -
Lore | Allpwsnce lor impairmmont - i : -
Ttk - et Bow (&G {3 - - 1,132 16 - = 524.31 -
1.1 Getalls of investmant in securiy receipts are as toliows:
Partizulars Az March 33, 2022 Fi at March 31, 2021
Units 1 Mmoot Linits paogny  J
Serunty Recapts 185 5R! LEG o INESGE IS5
Total | 8526 20850
7.2 Datails of dvetiment in martoal furds are 35 inl_lwru
Parthculars Ay at March 31, 2022 As ak Masch 31, F21
Winjts Ammout Units Arndia
Adivya Birfa Ban Life Mutaa Fupd 1TAEER G046 J0ED apsey 3 FTETY
Pelirde Ausat AMuzual Fured 33338 7% £ 4
Surdaram Motual Fund - I7SAE AT 3011
DS hutusl Fund EFET O LOOLOE M6 35009
581 Mutupl Fand SRIOE33 01,33 A1 TR
I Prudential R Fung AT 002,283 5005 | EIIEI0E ol
LT Fdubpiad P - RS fH Eqrdac]
LET Wiutual Fund (R LR HE R EES
Tots Mlutual Furd EA1AR 586 RN RES
Urdoe Rdusial Fussd 1rEES 231 2T
Tizaal 45250 Hg.a0
Mot 2 Otier financial asssts
Particutars Az gt March | o 2t March 34,
31 pEE Mz
Seririty depoalts 12.50 14,35
Recesable an Sdsgnment of Loans REA.11 62158
A ar finon gt Fes .17 ERL LA
Toaal HTY.1E 1,645.52 |




Muthoos HameSn (India) Lemited

Wates to the financial statemenis for e year ended March 11, 2007

Nate & Propesty, plant and eguipsnent

(s in Million)
Particutars Furniture & Leesehold Cewmiputer Ciffice Building | Servers and |  Tofal
Fizlures Improvements Equipmant Matworks
Greds Carrying Arounit;
Ay pped T 2030 1568 GA.T4 370 15.14 144 A0a | 14784
Acklitiorm 4.59 181 041 L - 0 il
Diuposal [AE, 3.48 D80 - : #31
At March 33, 200 (A 14,64 £7.17 3371 25 34 2,49 10| 147.45 |
Aokditiors 1.7 473 e | (a3 HHd
|Easpasals 1.51 12.69 £.92 » - 1712
At parch 31, 2022 (B} 14,50 58,21 33.92 23.05 2.3 4,10 137.37
Dwprecation and Emgairment;:
Ab Aprll 1, 3020 .00 1346 27.18 1275 01T 147 (R
Dispirals e 1,74 3545 5 - 128
-latson charge for Thee year +4a7 12 5 3,76 5,80 332 054 1505
Ax Baatch 31, 2021 € 741 33.20 30.94 17.99 034 181 9269
0.Ad =47 - i b - gy
recz¥lion charge Far the yeai 1403 219 24 3.00 0.20 LDE1} 1462
B.50 34.43 31,78 18,81 .54 332 | ov37
723 3397 217 T.35 115 179 | Sam
I 51, 2022 (B-0 .00 2479 344 424 1.95 0.78 0.9

4.1 The cithe deeds, comarising &8 The insmovabile praperiies of land and Bisidings which are frechold, are hetd ot aams of the Company ag3 o

bafare sheet date. There aee nejointly Beld immavable prapeies wih glkers,

A1 The pamipany has nat fevEiied its Propeny, Plant and Equpment dusiag e year,

2.3 There are no proceedings indtiaged o e pending agamst the company far fiodding Bny benami property under e Benami Transactions
iPeabifitan] Aok, 1988 (25 of TOHEY ancd rules made thereenden

Mot 10: Capital wark-in-progress

wip Sdhedube af Capttal Wiark-In-Prdgrass J0WIH]
A% AT Margh 31, 123
Pamicidarsg Less than X year | E-2 yebrs E-Xyears | More than Tetal
3 yoars
Brojects In prograss &5.97 B 5T
Prp{Ects Dem sy tuspended

Mute: The Campary do pdt fiave any prajects whose actiity nas Boen Compheley tuspented. The comaany 00 N0T FEve &y iroets whose

complation is overdue o has esceeded i cose compared 10 its original plaa,




Muthaod Homefin |Indiz) Limited
feates to the fimandial statements far the year ended harch 31, 2022

Nate 11: Cther Wnganpible Assets {Rs in MiEan ]

Particulars Computer Software and Website
Digvelopament

Groas Carrying Aot

AT At 1, 2000 1570

A Eticnd LG

Cispasals

At March 31, 2021 (&) 6, BS

Additions o.is

[Dispasals

At #arch 31, 2027 [8) 17.61

Deprecistion and Impatrment:

A apetd 3310 G a8

THapsals -

Eleggginlgﬂ charge lor the wear E.E_ﬂ

At March 33, 2001 [T } 1282

Disposals

Dwepreciation charge for tha wear 183

At March 31, 2022 (D) 14.55

Met book value:

At Barch 31, 2021 [&-C) 4.04

At March 33, 2022 (B-D) FET

11.1 The camspary bas not revaued s inbangibie S5501 during the year

11.2 The comipany da nat have any Ingangsle asset under fevsiapment durlig the year
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Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Mote 16: Other Financlal liabilities | R i Mitlion)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Interest socrwed but not due on barrowings 28331 271.33
Duesto assignees toweaards colfections in derecognised assats L (et |
Bonk Cwerdraft G841 5577
Salary Peyable 13,06 .91
Dthars 3495 39712
Total 499.29 541.97
Mote 17 Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 A% at March 31, 2021
Privvision for employes benalits
- Gratulty 359 3.59
- Brondgion lor cormpensated absences 347
Takak 756 3.59 |
Note 18: Other Non-financlal liabibties
Particulars s at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Statutory dues payahle 739 5.50 |
Total 7.39 5.56




reluthaat Homelin {indis] Limied
Metics to the financiad statements lor the year ended Manch 31, 2022,

Miske 19: fgpity share caphial

(e in P dlion)
Partodar syt March 31, A 3t March 3%,
Falked 2038

Auttuceise:
L5000 200 By Share o B TS 2achy (6o 31 2021 - 150 000 000 Bxpaicy Shares o

W, I dah| p 1 L5HLOD
lssued, iadiedbad and Fally pald ug
1180155843 Squity Shares of Bx 100 each (WA 3102027 0115155 B3 Equity Shares of 119146 LinlEe
By 10 paed
Trlal dquity 1,351.56 1,191.58
FetoniFata of the ramiser of eguity shanes and armcand oubsianding at the begining and al the wnd of the year
Particulars B of shaings Arrgumt bn R
Ax ot apdl 3, 2020 13,9144 qaz 1,191 5€
linppd gunng the year
Aokt March 31, 2021 11,91,55,84% 118155
irpadl during the vaar S
A5 &1 March 31, B2 11,9155, 843 119056

Tarms) nghis atipchid 1o sguiy shares

8 The Company das dmbone dass of equiny Shares hiuiog parwaiue of 5300 per shiamn, Al thash stiieey havs the same fights ahd prederences mith espist 1o the paymem of

Fvigend. renaymaiil of capris! e vodieg.

£l P et of fguidistion: of the compan, e Beident of equicy shares will e cemmitied 1 rasee the readsd walue of she assessof the Comrgaiy, remaining after paymenn of a0
preierantat dues Tee dadibton wil D in geoporion o she numbe of sglty sbares hetd tr e sfarssoldens,

Shares heid ultivane Relding {ar thair subsidiais) assodatey
&5 at Manch 31, 2022 A5 at Mianck 31, 2021
PR Mo, ol shares Mo, ol shanes

115,155,843 Eqpuary Shasas of By 100~ sach (March 3L, 3031 118,155 563 Equay Shares ol

M- 1oy~ mach)

Pefuthoat Franto Lmife: L1328 55 84 119455 R43
Details of Equity sharaholder balding more than 5% sharks in the comparny

Ad at faech 81 2023 Ad at Maeeh 51, 200
Part e ulids I
u e %-holding in tha Nis. o shires % holding intha
chiss Class
Buthast France Limited 1150 55843 1exrs 1151 55:243 L]
Detatis of shares hald by pr
&= 25 March 31, 2022
Bromoter Name Mo of shares Sof enl chares = change dunsing
z a4
(M=shiom Fnaee Limied 11.51.55.243 100 | ril
VT dis 3t B 31, H021
Framates Mo, of sharas %5 ol betal shares | lh:hmr dunring
{lsthnat finance Umbted 1150 55243 i b

£ g et fecrds of che Company, ndidesg #s S iter oF Memibes sod other detlaratinn reo s 1rom tem vagardrg hersficial rannist t 2o sharofeading repr ssemts

Do ke =t harshicis drameep of shares

TS Ay s it msied any shares forconsidesation cahee than cash nof there has been any uphiask ol S, durmg the feevears emmediosely precoding 31 Manch 2057




“Morie Ho- Dther pguity

Partadars Ak ab Mards 51, Az ol Fprch 33,
i B,

Stanutory tekerde (Punsank 1o section 2530 of Nationad Housing Bank a21, 1987)*
Cpaning b ano BP0 155
Bdd® Transhar Bem tupphis balanca i the Skatemant of Prods and Los 1541 =40
Chasing Baisaen 335.50 1560
Seturky Prembum
Dytssrving hadance e ERELE S
et Secorittes primmium sevelned dofng the yeal -
Clasing balasnn 214581 214661
Hptaines Esenings
L'.p&ulr“_uw .50 517,58
Al Proiy fr bheyear 4.0e 10550
LEgs: Appuegration -

Timtider iy Skabuipry Beoeres [ 1=8:F1 1| (25,150
Closing balaros 75513 73700
Cthvier Carmpretenaiie Inogens
Oparing balees 163 ]
Al Dty Comporsens e Intoimg Sor o g Belons inmiie g 18 L33
Lags: mcisres Taw rjn 20 1A (e
Clasing batinos 1. 1631
Total ErXhazn 3,195.03

Nobe 21; Bature st purpass of resanm
Netere and purpose of Resarms

Secamibles Pramaumm Rosen: This Raserss repreenty the premium on suweol shares el can b atikzed in sooordarcs with S Brossinns s 6he Comparies A2l 2014

Retzingd garnings:
T Remervm sepresents the cumilatdve grofics of e Cgmpany, This Heserve com hecttized in aceordane sl the oredngee of Be Companios Ao, 3013,

CRatotory reserie:

*Eectin P ol Thi Maticna! Hosng Uack Aot 15287 defires chan eesry Bewsing Snance insbzulinn which i3 company shal Cosate o ardms Sund and trirader thern 3 s
it s A beEndy peroant ol i nel pioht dwdtg yesr as dsclosed in dhe stacerant of geofit and ke belone any decidnd s Sdchieed For sl Durpose Sit spedal rseve
argabed by the Conipany uinder Srcion 2605 (aF) of St ba Rl 0D, 15 consicired soibe an ehghls transler The company nas transtored an smcunt of S 4681 avilon b
spreceal resp o i e ol Secsion 250 (0 of MR AL T9ET,
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Mitkont Homafin {isdia) Limited

Motes ta thi fieancal atemeants for the year cnded 8March 31, 2023

[Rsin Milaan)
Node 35 Fipsnce Cost
For tho 31, 2003 Foar the year e 02
Particuhars an Flnar-:mliuhilruainnslmnmuwl|tm Total O Fleancial D Fipzncal “Tatal
maasured at fair valug measured at Esbilities Bahilities
theaigih prafit or loss | Amostised Cost measured At s | measured at
walud theough Brniatised Cost
profit oF loss
Erbarast on Loan fnons Baaks - A58 13 458,23 - 21641 AEES
Irrberest on Loan fram Flnancal institsions 13.34 1521 - M54 36:5%
Interest on Rafirance from NHE 763 T163 1 5107
Ifilgrest on Dol Seipitias 25167 FR1E? Az s 3F2a5
IfLEs it on mber Corjiarals Dagasity EREP] oo 0.31 K31
(Cther arrawing costs - 13.12 R 1754 17 54
Total H 80768 BOT.ZE - 133462 | 133462
feoke 26: imwpairmant of Financisd nstruments and wiita aff
The bestion fabln sher inmoainment lasson financial insmaments cusrae to statemont al profit 2o kass based an categary of finangial instriisent
Particulars rended March 31, 3032 Faor the year anded March 33, 2081
On Einamicial G Fipancial Tatal On Fnincial 0Oin Fnancial Tedal
IAELruTHsT LS imnkruments instruments insEruments
mmgasurad At fair valun msrasuried At moasusdd @1 Lair mesasured at
through o0 Amortised Lot vk through 00 | Amartised Cost
L2y BE3A5 BL3.95 512.14 ST 1%
InuesEmeris - a3 080 -
| Tatal = TOETE 703,75 - 507,14 50704
Mote 27 Employes Eenafit Expenses
Partculars Feer the year ended Far the year wnded
Miaech 21, 3033 | Mgrch 31, 3031
Zalaries anif Wapes Mah AT 3eiE
Cantributioes B Frowdent and Other Funds TLEL LY
CrakiEny Expeiay 187 2.33
zbaff Wellara Fapeagiy 8.3 4,40
Tiortal HEE61 343,62 |
[Rate 28: Deprecistion, amartization asd impainrmens
Pastiicztars Far bhie year ecdiad Eorthe year ended
Ilarch E!.IOR
Crepraciion af Tangile Ascals 1455 2504
Amortizatian of InfangHils foseys 1.8% 2.84
|TE:I 16,51 2782




Muthoat Homefin {India) Lirmdtad

Wates tothe financlal statesments o0 the year ended March 31, 2022

Mot 28 Other Expenses A in Millien)
Particulars For the year ondad Far the yesr snded
Barch 1, 2023
Honr 45,51 &5 31
tlectricity Charges 5.2 560
Husiness Promotan Expensas [ .55
Advaitidemeng [H S 22
Regaire & Maimtenance 5,02 748
Criadit Ratimy Fees ERL] 330
Credit Varifiasion Charges 431 5,38
Postage, Telngram and Telepldng 536 573
|Printirg and Staticnesy 306 121
Rates & Taxes 133 244
{Logal & Professional Charges 871 I
Travedlingand. Conveyance bl Z4a4
HBank Charges 1584 152
EFrankinE & Stamia Paper Charpes i i 0.3
{Ganeral Office Expenses Y14 6.7
[Houe Eeoqing Charges R ZRE
Wabich Hird & 8aintgnancs D27 017
Faymenis g Auditor [Befer nots 25,10 .88 11&
Birectors' Sitting Féa 116 0.85
Cammiszion ek 0.3
IT infrascruschire and Mainzenance Charge: 180 1R%
Technical Verification charges L 152
Loss on sale of asset a7 LAS
L5 Exoonse (Refdr note 28,2} 20 2403
Tetal 188,94 141.98
25,1 Auditer Fees
Particulas Foir the year ended Far the yaar ended
PMarch 3%, 2022 March 31, 2021
A3 auditor:
Statutory audit {including Limited Review) 1 6S
Tawx audit 16 (R
Other Services .07 T
.26 1.18
0.} Corporate Social Responsibilivg (CER)
Particulars For the year erded For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
amPaUng reqisra Ta be spent by the company during the 7.3 503
WEAF
denoont unspent! [eecess spant] carred fapsand fram
carlier yoars E
Aot actoaliy spent during the year 7.20 4.3
{Extass amount spant carmied forward]f Shon fll - -
Readon foe shartfall HE B
Retated party transactians - Muthoot 3 George
Foumnoatian .20 .03
Frosmsicn mada for lahility incurred & s
Mature af CER-Brtivities Far tho yaar ended For the year erded
; Miarch
Pramation of Educatan 3BT d.44d
Frarmation of Health Canzinclisding Preventive Health 1 438
Care ’
Framatinn of gendar equakity & ampowerment of i o3
wamen-
Pramation ¢f rural / naticnalises sparts [1fF3 :
§.20 .03

(= Ay

oy |
ez 010




Muthoot Homsdin |Eadaa) Limited
Peotas fo the finarcial stabtements for the vear endad March 33, 20022

feota 3k incarme Tay

{Rs 1 Millan)

The cdvmpanents af incomes T3 expanse fod tha year ended March 31, 2007 and pear ended March 31, 3071 are

Particulars Far tive year ended | For the year andad
March 31, 2032 March 31, 2021

Cierenl dax - 1310

Oelerred tan ralating bo erigination and reverssd ot temspoesary differences 3406 30,06 |

Income tak eiperse reported i statement of prafit and kaus 24006 E:I.E

QL1 Section

Dedarmad 1ax related to ibems mecognbsad G0 during the pean

et fagsfpaind an remeasurements of defined benefit plans {0i0e| it

BnCane Lak g i 01 (0,051 i0.35)]

Recanciliaticn of the total tas chasge:

The tax charge chewn in the statement of grefit and Toss differs Sram the e chargs that wanld apphe if 3l prolics Bad
been charged 21 e s31e applicable woiha comgany. A recontilistian betwonn the Tax pxperse.and the acrounting prafi
multiplied: by subsizithedly dnsciad tax rabe for the year spded March 31, 2027 2nd vadr ended Msch % 0L is ak

labaims:

Partitulars Far the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Masch 31, 2021

Agconating profit befare tas tooay I68.GE

Hatulory income tax rate of 25, 168% iMlareh 33,2021 25 Th3% A5Al 3245

Effect of uninecognised defered tar dzsets | 3584 {4.05)

Addirionad deduction under Income L act

Eltect af change in taxmie

Others 119 4, Th

Incane tax & in thet statemant of profit or loss 24.08 43,16

The elfective income b mate far karch 31, 2000 ia 23.00% [Maih 31, 2001- 25.55%).

Mate 3% Dafarred tas
The: felloresing Labile shows deforred bax reconded in the balance shent 2nd changes recardid o the Income tas ERpns:
Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
Agat March 31, 2022 As at Mavch 31, Faorthe year Fosf fhe pear
iy emgled March  ended March
3L, 20r2 21, 2021
Fuied assots dmpact of difference betamen tan deprociation asd 11.60 284 1785 42.35)
depreciation a5 per books ol acteunt
Hanuloey Reserve {a1an {6231} - 441
inberost spresd oo assigned laars s |E54.72) LR 6.0
Pronisios hor Wpa ot e | 5094 L 28y (23,13
Prapaid eqmense {0L7E| [LaLh 025 (3.38]
Security Deposit L0z 113 B .34
Bank Barrowings EOLEE] 1354} 13.24) L1.39
Hausng Loaas pracessing fees 102 LE92 TR0 10,52
Prosdsion For Gratuity 1.78 141 M7 [3.24)
Prevemian For Leswe Engashment L0 L1060 -
Tawancarry lerward loas 34,17 - [34.17] .32
Mat deferred tax asset J (liabilities) {165.55) |141.44]
Dednired tay chisngef{oredit) 24.11 041
Recondilintion of deferred tax mmfﬂlahiﬁi;l
Far tha yesr ended  For the year endad
Marich 31, 20732 Parch 31, 2091
Ogrenicg Balance as of 1 April 1541 44 [111.03)
Tax mcome/[eapense] disring the pesr recognised n profin of o |24.008p {30,065
Tag income{expense) during the vear recogrised in 0k 005} 0.35)
Clesing halance as of 21 #arch 165.55 {131 84}




Muthoot Homefin {india) Limited
Mates to the financlal statenents for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mobe 32: Earnings per share

LR i wFon)

Basic earnings per share (EPS| is cadeulated by diiding the net profit for the year attributable to equity hinldess of Coenpany by the

welghbes average number of equity sharesoutstanding durng the year,

Particulars

Met profit sttributable to ordinary equity shareholdars
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share

Effect of ditlition:
Weighted average number of ardinary shares adjusted for effect of ditution

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
04 125.50
11,931,55.843 11,4155 843
11,91 55,543 11,9155, 843

Earnings por share
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.71
Diluted earnings per share [Bs.] 0.71




Muthoot Homefin (Indla} Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Nate 33; Retirement Benefit Plan {Rsin Pillicng

refined Benefit Plan

The Company has 8 defined benafit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity ACL, 1972 Every emplovers
wini has compieted five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn saleary] for sach completed WEAT
of sarvica,

The following tables summaries the components of ret benefit expensa recoghized n the statement of profit and Toss snd the funded
status and amounts recognized in the batance sheet for the graruity plan in indian Rupaas,

Statarment of Profit and Loss

Mat employee benefit expense recognizedin the empioyes cost

For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Current senice Cosl 1.56 215
Intarest oot o0 henefit abligation e .25
Exprected return on plan assem 10.17) 0.aeh
Past Service Cost -
heet actuarial (gainlods recognized in the year I I8] (4,39}
|Net (benefit) / expense 1:50 0.93
{Actuel return'on plan eisels 0.19 0.08
Balance Sheat
Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fairvaice of plas pasets;
{Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2022 2021
Defined banafit ohiigation 6.3 5.35
Fair valua.of plan assets 2.75 1.76
Aczet! (lRbility) recopnized in the Balance sieet [2.509) (3.58)
Experience adjustmients on'plan liabilities [gain]y koss (0L16) {,16]
Experience adjustments on plan assets gain { (o) Y M
Changesin the present valua of the defined benetit obligation are as foliows:
Az gt March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 202 2021
Opening definad benefit obifgation 5.35 4,66
Transfer ingd {out]
LUment sepvice oosn 1.56 2.1k
interest Cost 023 05
Benefits paid (0.7 32}
Past Senvice Cesl - .
Srfuaral Iussf{_ﬁa_hjl Gl RET e B TS 10.10] 11.38}
Closing defined banefit ehligation 6.34 5.35

g




Muthoot Homefin {Indsa) Limived

Maobes to the financlal statements for the yoar ended March 31, 2022

Changes in the fair vaive of plan assets are asfollows:

As at March 31, | Asar Mareh 31,

Particidlars 2022 2021
Spening fairealue of plan-astets 1.7

Transfer mfOut -
Expeched retum 011 fL0g
Contrihutions: by emiployer 1.50 200
Bensfite peid {0,210 {32}
phckuariat gaing (less) 0.8 -
Elnslf@ fair walue of plan assets 275 1.76

The prncigal assumptions ased in determining gratuity obligateons for the Company's plans zre shown Balow:

{F= in Wiltion)

| Asat March 21, | Az at March 3,
IParticulars 2022 2021
Qiscount Hara A% pa 43% pa
Salary Growth Rae Thpa, TH P
Atrition F Withdrawal Hate 8% ooa, I8% p.a.
Sugacted rate of riturn on Astets 4.3% pa 5.3% pa
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increasas
Sensitivity Lewal 1% increase 1% decroase 1% Increase 1% decrease
: CHC gecreases by| DBO increases by| DBQ inoreases by| DBO decreases by
b f :
rapacton defined benefit obligation [March 31, 20220 Rs 0,19 %5 0.0 R 019 fe 0,100
: oo DBEC decreases by| DEDingresses byl DB increases by| DBO0 decreases by
1 ] | : .
R e e TEGon (Nigici o, 262, Rs 0,20 B 21 Rs0.20 Rs 0.20|

The weighted average duration of the defined benefic oDligation as at March 31, 2022 i 2 years [March 31, 20215 7 yaars)

The estimates of ru!urj—‘ salary increases, conshdered in actvarial valuation, takes intoaccount the inflation, seniority, promoton and other
redewvint factors, sch &5 supply and demand inthe employment marke:,

Thie discount rate is based an the prevaiting market yiekds of Government of India securities a3 at the halanca sheet date fior the estimated

tesm of the abiigations,
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Muthast Homefn [India) Limited
Mates to the financial siatements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote 38 Falr Vatue Measurement 184 in Bhillion)

Fair walue 15 She prive that would be received to el anasset o paid to transber 2 labdlingyin. s ordery transackion in the
princigal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current marker conditions (e, an exit price),
regardiess of whethes that price is directly abserable or sstimated dsing a valuation techrigoe. In order 1o show hiow Fak
vittees have been derivad, financial insgrements are classified based on & hiersichy of valuzstion technigues.

Fair Value Hierarchy of assets and liabifities

The carrylng amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabiities as at March 31, M2 ks as follows:
Particulars At FUWTFL

Level-1 Lawal-2 Level-3 Tatal
Irvestment In Myteal Tunds b2 a0 - - W52.90
Inwestrent in-Security -Aecipts - 178 EE - 179.76
The carrying amount and falr value messurement higrarchy for assets and liabifities as at March 31, 2021 ks as Folbows:
PFarticulars AL FUTRL

Ligwal 1 Leval-7 Level-3 Total
Irectrent in batial Eunds 115.80 - - 415,30
‘mgstment in S-El:urltg AeriEpts - Z0R.51 - 20851
Falr value technigue

tnwestment at falr value through profit and loss

For investment ot fair valve through profit and foss, valuation are done using valuation techniques.at the measurement date.
Walration technigues indlude market comparable methad, recent fransactions happened in the Caompany and other vaheation
mooets. Valdation'is also dona using quoted prices from active markatsat the imestement date,

Fair walue of financial instruments pot measured at fair value

S out below is @ comparisan, by dass, of tha carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's Tnancial instrumants that
are not cefrid at fakr valee In the financial staternenss, This szble dees not intlude e aic wilpes of non-fingncial sssets aand
nan-fingncialdiahiities.

{Particulars: Level Carrying Valug Fair Valus

As at March 31, | As 8t March 31, | As at March 31, [ As at March 31,

“2022 E\]_:I. EI 2021

[Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 4666 55222 46, BB 55222
Bank Salance ather than above 2 AEa 131.25 R17T 131.2%
Lo 3 1D,355.63 13, /a7, 15 10,295.63 13 TET19
guhar Finandcial assets . &Ta.18 164567 27918 1.645.62
| Total Financial Assets 11,474.24 16,096.28 11,474.24 16,096.23

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payabie 3 3306 331z 33.06 1317
|DEbt securities 2 242060 10a7.84 24MED 308784
Borsowings (others than diebt E-E'IZLII‘!‘I.'!.':I 2 BEAET 808353 522167 LA RN
Otigr Financial Habisities ! 459 79 443197 440, 44157
Total Financkal Liabdlizies B.174.71 12,206, 76 B174.71 12,246.76

There have been ne transfers betwean the level 1, 2 and 3 during the period.

The fair value of cash and cash aquivalents, bank balances, trade recoivables, trade payables and other financal swets and
lishilitees appresomate thelr carrying amsount lirgely due to the short-term nature of thess instruments. Hence carrying value
of thesa appr-:-ihmtes. fair wahie.

investmants

LI:-'!"E_S‘HW‘“W in figuid, short- term mutual funds and security receipts, which are classifiod a5 FUTPL are messured uting nat
sabtrvabue st the reportng date multiplied by the quastity held.

LT

patiy provises housing loans at variable rate of interest. Hence, tha fair value of the foans will be samp as tha carrying
valte of loan,
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Annex

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC

[R5 in Crore)
Partlculars
Liahilittes Side Amount outstanding Amount overdue

{1} |Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest )

accrued thereon but not paid:

(a] |Debentures | Secured 142,07

s Unsecured -

b} |Deterred Credits

{c] )Term Loans 52217

{d} |Inter-corporate loans and borrowing -

1e]  |Commercial Paper

i1 [Pubdic Deposits

':‘E:.:' Dther Loans {specify nature) -
i2) |Break-up of (1}(f} above (Qutstanding public deposits inclusive

of interest accrued thereon but not paid):

i2) |in the form of Unsecured debentures

thl  |in the form of parthy secured debentures Lo, debentires

where there is a shortfalf in the value of security
izl |Other public deposits -
Assets Side Armount Outstanding

(3) |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (4) befow]:

la}

Secured

105528

1))

Linzecorsd

(4} |Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards asset financing activities

(i)

Lease assets im:iudmg._ lease rentaks under sundry debitors

a) Financial Lease

b} (Operating Lease

(i

Stack on hire including hire charges under sundry debtars

2  |Assets on hire

]| Repassessed Assets

(i

Other loans counting towards asset financing activities

3] |Loans where assets have been repossessed

b} |Loans other than (3} above

e

{5} {Break-up of Investments

1

Curr

(1] renks

Cuoted

{i] Ehafes

2] Equity

b} Preference

|{iE)  |Debentures and Bonds

i) [Units of mutual funds

05,20

[{iv]  [aovernment Securities

Ihr:l Dthers [please specify)

2

<}

Unguaoted

(1 |5hares

a) Equity

bl Preference

(i |Debentures and Bonds

fiii]  |[Wnits of mutwal funds

fiv]  |Government Securities

vl [Others {Security Receipts of Trast)




Long Term investments
1 Cuated
i shares
af Egquity
bl Preference
i} Debentures and Bonds
i iH)  |uhnits of mutual funds
I vl  |Gowernment Securities
.t Dthers {please specify)
2 Unguoted
() [Shares
[a} Equity

(b} Preference

(i} |Bebentores and Bonds

(i)  [Linits of mutual funds

liv]  |Government Securities

vl {Others Caecurity Beceipts of Trust) 11.00
(&) |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
Amount net of Provisions
Category
Secured Unsecured Total

1 Retated Parties

(a] [Subsidiaries - -

by [Companies in the same grogp =

{c} |Other related parties . - -
i Other than related parties 102556 . 1,029.56

Total 1,029.56 - 1,025,556

(7} |Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term} in shares and securities {both

quoted and unguoted) :

Market Value / Break up or [Book  Value [Net

Calegory fair value or NAYV of Provislons
1 |Related Parties
la)  |Subsidiaries :
b) Companies in the same group =
(i Other related parties - - -
F. Cther than related parties 11327 113.22
Total 113.22 113.22
(&) |Other Information
Particulars Amount
) |Gross Mon-Performing Assets
) Related parties
b)  |Cther than related parties 3092
fiip  [Met Mon-Performing Assets
al  (Related parties -
by |Other than related parties 13,16

{iiil

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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